PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
The bid listed below has had addenda issued. Documents are available over the Internet at
http://www.norwalkct.org Adobe Acrobat reader is required to view this document. If you
do not have this software you may down load it for free from Adobe. A link to the Adobe
site is provided on the internet bid page. The document number to request will be the same as
the project number indicated above.
Project #

Addendum #

# of pages

Original Issue Date

Request Doc #

3270

4

1

March 27, 2013

1001 - see text below

Date

May 22, 2013

Project Number

3270

Addenda Number

4

Deadline

02:00PM

Project Title

Development, Construction & Operation of a new outdoor golf practice
range facility at the Oak Hills Park Golf Course, Norwalk, CT

.

June 5, 2013 (see below)

This Addendum is a contract document modifying previously issued documents, which
remain in full force except as specifically modified below.
Quotations appearing on the Proposal are to reflect the provisions of this Addendum. Failure to
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the response sheet may subject
candidate to disqualification.
New Information:
1. The deadline for the submission of proposal responses for this solicitation has been
extended from 2:00pm, May 22, 2013 to 02:00pm, June 5, 2013.

End of Addendum #4

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
The bid listed below has had addenda issued. Documents are available over the Internet at
http://www.norwalkct.org Adobe Acrobat reader is required to view this document. If you
do not have this software you may down load it for free from Adobe. A link to the Adobe
site is provided on the internet bid page. The document number to request will be the same as
the project number indicated above.
Project #

Addendum #

# of pages
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3

1

March 27, 2013

1001 - see text below

Date

April 30, 2013

Project Number

3270

Addenda Number

3

Deadline

02:00PM

Project Title

Development, Construction & Operation of a new outdoor golf practice
range facility at the Oak Hills Park Golf Course, Norwalk, CT

.

May 22, 2013 (see below)

This Addendum is a contract document modifying previously issued documents, which
remain in full force except as specifically modified below.
Quotations appearing on the Proposal are to reflect the provisions of this Addendum. Failure to
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the response sheet may subject
candidate to disqualification.
New Information:
1. The deadline for the submission of proposal responses for this solicitation has been
extended from 2:00pm, May 1, 2013 to 02:00pm, May 22, 2013.

End of Addendum #3

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
The bid listed below has had addenda issued. Documents are available over the Internet at
http://www.norwalkct.org Adobe Acrobat reader is required to view this document. If you
do not have this software you may down load it for free from Adobe. A link to the Adobe
site is provided on the internet bid page. The document number to request will be the same as
the project number indicated above.
Project #

Addendum #

# of pages
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2

11

March 27, 2013

1001 - see text below

Date

April 18, 2013

Project Number

3270

Addenda Number

2

Deadline

02:00PM

Project Title

Development, Construction & Operation of a new outdoor golf practice
range facility at the Oak Hills Park Golf Course, Norwalk, CT

.

May 1, 2013

This Addendum is a contract document modifying previously issued documents, which
remain in full force except as specifically modified below.
Quotations appearing on the Proposal are to reflect the provisions of this Addendum. Failure to
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the response sheet may subject
candidate to disqualification.
New Information:
1. A pre-proposal conference was held 10:00am, Wednesday, April 10th at the Oak Hills
Park Golf Course, 165 Fillow Street. A copy of the sign-in sheet from that pre-proposal
conference is included as an attachment to this addendum [Two (2) pages].

Response to Questions:
1. Question: What restrictions, if any, are there on the hours of operation of the new facility?
Response: The intent of the RFP is that the proposed new golf practice range
facility would operate the same hours as all City parks, dawn-to-dusk.
2. Question: Would we be allowed to heat the facility to extend the hours of operation into
the winter months?
Response: Yes.

3. Question: Can you provide us with a list of the permits that would be needed to construct
and operate this facility?
Response: The specific permits necessary would be dependent upon the scope and
substance of the proposed project. However, generally, such permits might
include: Building Department, Conservation, Public Works and Zoning.

4. Question: Can you provide us with a list of the committees that will be involved in the
review and or approval process for this project?
Response: The City Departments involved in the review and approval process
would be dependent upon the scope and substance of the proposed project.
Generally speaking it is anticipated that the Planning and Zoning Commissions
and the Conservation Commission, among others, may be involved with the
review process.

5. Question: Are there any “wetland” issues with this proposed property area?
Response: Within the proposed project area, the northern and eastern sides of the
are adjacent to inland wetlands and watercourses; and between the wetlands /
watercourses and the area of consideration is steep (greater than 20% grade)
slopes. So, depending on the limit of disturbance associated with the proposed golf
practice driving range proposal and the proximity to the limit of grading on these
steep slopes, an Inland Wetland Permit application may be necessary. Even if the
limit of disturbance is just a bit beyond the distances described above, the Agency
may still require a permit if they find that the amount of disturbance & grading is
significant and is likely to affect the wetlands and watercourses below.

6. Question: Would the potential list of agencies that need to approve any permit (s) for this
property include a wetland and/or conservation commission?
Response: See responses to questions 3 and 5 of this addendum.

7. Question: Concerning alternate sites within the golf course for the proposed practice
range, do you have a secondary (or potentially alternate locations) that you might consider
for this solicitation?
Response: Yes, a potential alternate area, would be the area near the cart barn
and the existing teaching area, which is in proximity to the 6th green.

8. Question: Can you provide a topographic image of the proposed area?
Response: Yes. A topographic image of the Oak Hills Park is included as an
attachment to this addendum [one (1) page].

9. Question: Can you provide more definitive information concerning the width and depth of
the proposed golf practice range area?
Response: The size of the undeveloped proposed project area is approximately 450
feet (150 yards) wide by approximately 900 feet (300 yards) deep. It is anticipated
that the completed golf practice range facility would be somewhat smaller
approximately 330 feet (110 yards) wide and 810 feet (270 yards)]deep in order to
allow for some buffer zones.

10. Question: The RFP mentions that the Oak Hills Park Authority’s current lease with the
City for this property expires in 2017 and that the Oak Hills Park Authority is presently
seeking an extension to that lease. When do you anticipate that the details of the new lease
expiration period would be available?
Response: It is anticipated that the details of the extension period lease would be
available sometime in May/June 2013. At this time no substantive changes to the
lease are expected, other than amending the lease expiration date. The term of the
extension period is anticipated to be for period of not less ten (10) additional
years, subject to the final authorization of the Norwalk Common Council.

11. Question: Please confirm whether or not the overhead lighting of the golf practice range
facility will be permitted?
Response: No overhead lighting will be permitted except as required by the
building code of the city. (Example, parking, safety lighting, etc…)

12. Question: (a) Will the operator of the golf driving range facility need to provide its own
parking area? (b) Or would the operator have access to the parking lot areas that already
exist within the golf course facility?
Response: (a) Yes, additional parking, if required, will need to be provided so as
to conform with the zoning regulations. (b). Access and parking rights to the
existing parking lot areas would be granted to the successful proposer.

13. Question: I was not able to attend today’s meeting. Who do I need to contact to set-up
another site visitation?
Response: To view the proposed project area please contact Mr. Shelly Guyer,
Executive Director of the Oak Hills Park Golf Course, at 203-838-0303 ext 5.

14. Question: I am only interested in the piece of land south of Chipping Lane, and north of
the restaurant parking lot. The preferred location of the range per the RFP. Are there, or
will there be any permitting issues regarding locating the range on that property?
Response: See above responses to questions 3, 4, 5 & 6 of this addendum. As a
point of reference, a traffic study was commissioned in 2003 in connection with the
construction of the clubhouse restaurant at Oak Hills Park. This traffic study was
prepared by Barkin and Mess. If a new traffic study is required, it is anticipated
that the successful proposer, would be given access to the 2003 traffic study and
may be able to update that traffic study based on current conditions.
15. Question: What is the timeline for the review and approval process for the submissions
received?
Response: It is anticipated that the initial review process will be approximately
two (2) weeks. The approval and authorization process(es) however may take an
additional 3-4 weeks, or longer, depending upon the meeting calendars.

16. Question: What are your expectations as to when you want the construction process to
start?
Response: Our expectations are that the successful proposer, once authorized to
commence, would immediately commence the permit processes. With the ultimate
goal of commencing the construction process in the fall, 2013.

17. Question: Are there any time periods (ex. tournaments) that would limit the construction
period?
Response: No.

18. Question: Once a Firm is selected, will there be a public hearing on the proposed plan?
Response: Yes, pursuant to the lease that the Oak Hills Park Authority has with
the City of Norwalk a public meeting is required, wherein the public would be
allowed to comment on any proposed plan.

19. Question: If so, would there be multiple public hearings in front of multiple committees?
Or would there be 1-2 public hearings in front of 1-2 committees?
Response: It is anticipated that the Oak Hills Park Authority would conduct at
least one (1) such public meeting on the project. And additionally there may be,
dependent upon the scope of the proposed project, additional public meetings.

20. Question: Will you be waiving the permit fees and any required filing application fees?
Response: No.

21. Question: Are union workers a requirement for the developers staff?
Response: No.

22. Question: I need to know the distances, and locations of where to tap into the utilities to
run to the sales office and PGA academy. Could you point me in the right direction
regarding this?
Response: Please contact Mr. Shelly Guyer, Executive Director of the Oak Hills
Park Golf Course, at 203-838-0303 extension # 5 for existing utility information.
Additionally, the clubhouse restaurant in Oak Hills Park was constructed in 2004.
Site utility information for that project was detailed on the construction drawings.
For your reference, attached to this addendum is a copy of the site utility plan for
the clubhouse restaurant construction project [(One (1) page].

23. Question: Might the OHPA agree to extend the hours of operation for the practice range
in the future?
Response: No. All City parks are open dawn-to-dusk. At present time, there are no
plans to extend the operating hours of any City park past dusk.

24. Question: Alternatively, might the OHPA enable the practice range to operate in the
evening by extending the hours of operation for Oak Hills into the evening?
Response: No. All City parks are open dawn-to-dusk. At present time, there are no
plans to extend the operating hours of any City park past dusk.

25. Question: Might the practice range ever be permitted to operate past dusk?
Response: No. All City parks are open dawn-to-dusk. At present time, there are no
plans to extend the operating hours of any City park past dusk.

26. Question: Will the operator of the practice range at any point be permitted to construct
lights that will enable it to operate past dusk?
Response: No. All City parks are open dawn-to-dusk. At present time, there are no
plans to extend the operating hours of any City park past dusk.

27. Question: What is "an adequate and appropriate level of compensation"? Specifically,
what is the minimum amount of compensation the OHPA will accept for permitting the
driving range to be constructed and operated in the park?
Response: The minimum level of compensation has not been set. It is anticipated
that acceptance of any proposed compensation offers would be dependent on the
responses to the RFP and the subsequent discussions of the selection committee.

28. Question: What is the minimum percentage of the driving range's gross revenue that the
OHPA will be willing to accept as a condition for allowing it to operate?
Response: A minimum percentage level of gross receipts revenue that would be
payable to the Oak Hills Park has not been set. It is anticipated that acceptance of
any proposed revenue sharing offers would be dependent on the responses to the
RFP and the subsequent discussions of the selection committee.

29. Question: What is the reason for providing language that relaxes the requirement for "a
performance bond or escrow check in the full amount of the construction cost"?
Response: This was a business decision with the intent of encouraging the
participation of as many interested parties as possible.

30. Question: Precisely what "evidence" would satisfy you of a "commitment from investors
or lender to fund the full cost of the facility?"
Response: As outlined in the RFP, the ideal arrangement would be for the successful
proposer to submit a performance bond or escrow check in the full amount of the
construction cost. However, alternatively, evidence of a commitment from investors or
lenders to fund the full cost of the facility may be accepted. Such alternate evidence
might include a copy of the successful proposer commitment letter from their financial
partners and or lending institution and or a letter of credit from the same. The
acceptance of such alternate evidence of commitment would be at the discretion of the
selection committee.

31. Question: What will the firm that constructs and operates the driving range be required to
do to ensure that the operation of the driving range won't have a negative impact on those
who just want to enjoy the only remaining natural surroundings in the park – i.e. the
wooded area between the Restaurant and Chipping Lane?
Response: The details of the successful proposer’s obligations as they pertain to the
operation of the golf driving range and of the surrounding park areas will be fully
outlined within the resulting lease document between the Oak Hills Park Authority
and the successful proposer.

32. Question: If cleared trees are to be replaced with new trees doesn't that mean that at a
minimum the amount acceptable to the authority will be equal to the number of trees that
have been cleared?
Response: Such obligations of the proposers would be dependent on their
responses to the RFP and the subsequent discussions of the selection committee.

33. Question: What funds might the OHPA require to move ahead with the project?
Response: The intent of this solicitation is for the successful proposer to develop,
construct and operate the golf practice range.

34. Question: Can you specify some or all of the permits the operator will have to acquire?
Response: See response to questions 3, 4, 5 and 6 this addendum.

35. Question: Who is on the selection committee?
Response: The selection committee consists of the members of the Oak Hills Park
Authority.

36. Question: Are there limits that will be permitted to the size of the practice range (e.g. to
the number of bays, number of levels, and height of the nets that will be allowed)?
Response: Unknown at this time. Such topics of discussion and review would be
dependent upon the scope and substance of the proposed project.

37. Question: Are there any other conditions that you would put on the construction of the
practice range?
Response: Unknown at this time. Such topics of discussion and review would be
dependent upon the scope and substance of the proposed project.

38. Question: Has a study been done of the impact a practice range on the proposed site will
have on the environment (including the nature trails and bird sanctuary)? If so, what does
it say? If not, is there going to be an environmental impact study or is there some reason
why one is not required?
Response: No; no study has been performed. Such a study was not required for the
purposes of this RFP.

End of Addendum #2

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
The bid listed below has had addenda issued. Documents are available over the Internet at
http://www.norwalkct.org Adobe Acrobat reader is required to view this document. If you
do not have this software you may down load it for free from Adobe. A link to the Adobe
site is provided on the internet bid page. The document number to request will be the same as
the project number indicated above.
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Date

April 8, 2013

Project Number

3270

Addenda Number

1

Deadline

02:00PM

Project Title

Development, Construction & Operation of a new outdoor golf practice
range facility at the Oak Hills Park Golf Course, Norwalk, CT

.

May 1, 2013

This Addendum is a contract document modifying previously issued documents, which
remain in full force except as specifically modified below.
Quotations appearing on the Proposal are to reflect the provisions of this Addendum. Failure to
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the response sheet may subject
candidate to disqualification.
Response to Questions:
1. Question: Is the driving range that you are bidding out natural turf or synthetic?
Response: The composition of the turf material for the golf practice range facility
will be left to the proposer, as they shall be responsible for the construction and
operation of the facility.
2. Question: I am inquiring about a request for proposals for the Development, Construction
& Operation of a New Outdoor Golf Practice Facility. Do you have an estimated budget
of value for the project.
Response: No.
3. Question: If this is privately funded then Prevailing Wage does not come into play, yes?
Response: State of Connecticut, Department of Labor, prevailing wage rates would
apply if the total cost of the new construction is expected to exceed $400,000.00.

4. Question: Is the developer required to be Bonded?
Response: Please refer to section 1.6 of the RFP solicitation document for
information on this topic.
5. Question: Is the City strictly looking for a developer that will develop, construct and
operate the new outdoor golf practice range facility or will the City accept a developer
that is interested in the construction but not the operation of the facility?
Response: Yes. At this time the City will only be entertaining proposal submissions
that address all three (3) components – development, construction and operation of
a new outdoor golf practice range facility.
6. Question: How do I obtain a list of prospective bidders for Project 3270? I'm interested in
finding out those who requested bid packages and any prospective bidders that were sent
unsolicited bid packages.
Response: The City of Norwalk publishes its solicitations within the Norwalk Hour
newspaper, for this solicitation the advertisement appeared within the March 27th
edition. Additionally, the City posted a copy of the RFP solicitation on its website:
www.norwalkct.org and on the State of Connecticut, Department of Administrative
Services, contract portal website: http://www.das.state.ct.us/mp1.aspx?page=9 The
City does not publish or release any other specific information concerning its
solicitation efforts during the RFP solicitation period. However, at the conclusion
of the RFP solicitation process, and once an award has been issued, interested
parties may request additional information pursuant to the guidelines described
within the State of Connecticut’s Freedom of Information Act.

End of Addendum #1

